
Committee Agenda   
 

1 

 
 
AREA PLANS SUBCOMMITTEE B 
Wednesday, 7th December, 2005 
 
Place: Civic Offices, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Gary Woodhall, Democratic Services Assistant 
tel: 01992 564470 email:gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors M Colling (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), R Glozier, Mrs A Grigg, 
S Metcalfe, Mrs S Perry, Mrs P K Rush, D Stallan, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 1. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 

SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 
 

 2. MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services) To declare interests in any item on this 
agenda. 
 

 



Area Plans Subcommittee B  Wednesday, 7 December 2005 
 

2 

 5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 6. PROBITY IN PLANNING - PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS, APRIL 2005 TO 
SEPTEMBER 2005  (Pages 13 - 18) 

 
  (Head of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 

 
 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 19 - 44) 

 
  (Head of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications as 

set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Head of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 



Area Plans Subcommittee B  Wednesday, 7 December 2005 
 

3 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act indicated: 
 
 

Agenda  
Item No 

 
Subject 

Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of the following items which are confidential under Section 100(A)(2) of 
the Local Government Act 1972: 
 

Agenda  
Item No 

 
Subject 

Nil Nil 
 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee. A map 
showing the venue will be attached to the agenda. 
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes and if you are not present by the time your item is considered, the 
Subcommittee will determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers 
presentations. The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either 
the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should 
the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they 
are required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Agenda Item 1

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Area Plans Subcommittee B Date: 9 November 2005  
   

Place: Civic Offices, Epping Time: 7.30  - 8.05 pm 

Members
Present:

M Colling (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), R Glozier, Mrs A Grigg, 
S Metcalfe, Mrs S Perry, Mrs P K Rush, D Stallan, C Whitbread, 
Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse 

Other
Councillors: (none)

Apologies: (none)

Officers
Present:

B Land (Assistant Head of Planning and Economic Development) and 
G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Assistant) 

34. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 

35. MINUTES  

 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 October 2005 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

36. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs S Perry, 
C Whitbread and J M Whitehouse declared a personal interest in the following items 
of the agenda, by virtue of being a member of Epping Town Council. The Councillors 
had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1471/05 – 13 Bower Hill, Epping; and 

• EPF/1645/05 – 273-275 High Street, Epping. 

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs A Grigg, 
S Metcalfe, Mrs S Perry, D Stallan, C Whitbread and Mrs J H Whitehouse declared a 
personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being an account 
holder with the Abbey National. The Councillors had determined that their interest 
was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
applications and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1645/05 – 273-275 High Street, Epping. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 7



Area Plans Subcommittee B  9 November 2005 

2

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor R Glozier 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being a 
member of Theydon Bois Parish Council. The Councillor had determined that his 
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1567/05 – 6 Graylands, Theydon Bois.  

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors M Colling, A 
Green, R Glozier, Mrs A Grigg, S Metcalfe, Mrs S Perry, D Stallan and C Whitbread 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of the 
applicant’s property adjoining a property of the local Member of Parliament, with 
whom the members were closely associated. The Councillors had determined that 
their interest was prejudicial and would leave the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1643/05 – 5 Avenue Road, Theydon Bois. 

37. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

In accordance with Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together 
with paragraphs 6 and 25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained within the 
Constitution, the Chairman permitted the Assistant Head of Planning and Economic 
Development to give the Sub-Committee an oral report in respect of possible 
enforcement action against the development of a golf course at Blunts Farm in 
Theydon Bois. The Chairman stated that it had been felt that the Sub-Committee 
should be updated about the latest developments now, rather than wait a further 
month for a formal report to be made. 

The Assistant Head of Planning and Economic Development reported that despite 
regular site inspections, the Landscape Officer had been concerned that the levels of 
the landscaping had risen higher than had been agreed by the Council. The Council 
commissioned Stace Quantity Surveyors to undertake a levels survey. Their draft 
report was received on 13 October 2005 and indicated that the height and spread of 
material on the land had exceeded the approved plans. On 25 October 2005, 
Planning Officers wrote to the Developers to advise them that the Council intended to 
issue a Temporary Stop Notice, which would require the work to cease, and 
requested that the work be voluntarily stopped. The Developers responded that work 
would cease on the site from 4 November 2005 for two weeks, and Officers had 
since confirmed that work had indeed stopped.  

On 4 November 2005, a meeting took place between Planning Officers and the 
Developer’s Agents, whereby the Council reiterated that there had been a breach of 
the planning conditions, for which there was no likelihood of planning permission 
being granted and that enforcement action would be authorised. In view of the 
requirement for further lorry movements to remove the excess materials that had 
been imported, the following compromise was offered: no more fill material to be 
imported; the material that had already been imported to be used to finish the 
landscaping; only sand and topsoil to be imported on to the site in future; and 
compensation to be sought in order to repair the damage that had been caused in 
Theydon Bois by the lorry movements. The Developers queried whether the agreed 
levels had actually been exceeded. Thus, Stace had been asked to produce cross-
sections from their report for comparison with the approved plans, and the 
Developers had also been asked to supply base level drawings. The Assistant Head 
of Planning and Economic Development stated that the Council was confident that 

Page 8



Area Plans Subcommittee B  9 November 2005 

3

there had been a breach of planning conditions, and drawings were expected to be 
exchanged by Friday 11 November.  

The Assistant Head of Planning and Economic Development reminded the Sub-
Committee that Officers had delegated authority to serve a Stop Notice, or any other 
form of enforcement action that Legal Services may advise as the best course of 
action, such as an injunction. The Sub-Committee was reassured that if no 
agreement had been reached within the next fourteen days, or the importation of 
material was restarted by the developers, then the Council would take enforcement 
action.

The Sub-Committee expressed concern over the source and type of material that 
had been imported on to the site, but the Assistant Head of Planning and Economic 
Development advised that these were matters that were controlled by the 
Environment Agency, not the local planning authority. The Sub-Committee felt that all 
necessary enforcement action should be taken in order to prevent further breaches of 
the agreed planning conditions. 

38. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 4 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes. 

39. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices.  

CHAIRMAN

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Report Item No: 1.

APPLICATION No: EPF/1471/05

SITE ADDRESS: 13 Bower Hill, Epping 

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs R Leadley 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Ground floor rear extension and loft conversion with side 
dormer window. 

DECISION: GRANTED 

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 

3 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the proposed side dormer window shall be fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames, and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 

Report Item No: 2 

APPLICATION No: EPF/1645/05 A 

SITE ADDRESS: 273 - 275 High Street, Epping 

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Abbey National Group 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of non-illuminated fascia sign with halo illuminated 
lettering and logo and a non-illuminated hanging sign. 

DECISION: GRANTED 

CONDITIONS:

1 The white fascia sign shall have a non-reflective finish and shall thereafter be 
maintained in that condition. 

2 The halo-illumination of the lettering and logo granted consent by this Notice shall 
not exceed 1600 cd/sq.m 

Minute Item 38

Page 5Page 11



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1567/05

SITE ADDRESS: 6 Graylands, Theydon Bois 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Miller 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Loft conversion with rear dormer windows. 

DECISION: GRANTED 

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 

Report Item No: 4.

APPLICATION No: EPF/1643/05

SITE ADDRESS: 5 Avenue Road, Theydon Bois 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 

APPLICANT: Mr J Warnell 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Roof extension to form first floor accommodation, two storey 
side extension and rear conservatory. 

DECISION: Referred to District Development Control Committee 
since the Sub-Committee was inquorate for this item. 

Page 6Page 12



Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee ‘B’ 
 
Date of meeting: 7 December 2005. 
 
Subject: Probity in Planning – Planning Appeal Decisions, 
April 2005 to September 2005. 
 
Officer contact for further information: Barry Land (01992 – 56 4110). 
 
Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 – 56 4470).  
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Planning Appeal Decisions for the period April 2005 to September 
2005 be noted. 

 
Background: 
 
1.   In compliance with the recommendation of the District Auditor, this report advises the 

decision-making committee of the results of all successful appeals, particularly those 
refused by committee contrary to officer recommendation.  The purpose is to inform 
the committee of the consequences of their decisions in this respect and, in cases 
where the refusal is found to be unsupportable on planning grounds, an award of 
costs may be made against the Council. 

  
2. To set the context, a Best Value Performance Indicator was for district councils to 

aim to have less than 40% of their decisions overturned on appeal with the national 
average of about 33%.  (That BVPI was scrapped but recently replaced by one 
where the Council sets its own target – set this year at 25%.)   In fact in recent years 
the Council has been more successful than the national average with only 31% 
overturned in 1999/00, 25% in 2000/01, 24% in 2001/02, 27% in 2002/03, 18% in 
2003/04 and 29% in 2004/05. 

 
Performance: 
 
3. Over the six-month period between April and Sept 2005, the Council received 61 

decisions on appeals – 54 planning appeals and 7 enforcement appeals.  Of the 54 
planning appeals, 10 were allowed (19%) and of the 7 enforcement appeals, 2.5 
were allowed  – a combined total of 20% of the Council’s decisions overturned. 

 
Planning Appeals: 
 
4. Of those 10 planning appeals allowed, 2 were allowed following decisions by 

committee to refuse contrary to officer’s recommendation.  Those 2 were: 
 

• EPF/2041/04 – Two storey extensions at 67, Tycehurst Hill, Loughton (Area 
Committee A 02/02/05); and 

• EPF/2398/04 – Erection of 3 cottages at 109, Lindsey Street, Epping (Area 
Committee B 09/03/05). 

 
5. To complete the picture, officers were successful in sustaining a committee decision 

to refuse, when officers had recommended granting permission, in two cases - 
nos.16 and 52 on the attached list. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 13



 
Costs: 

 
6. Costs were awarded in just 1 appeal.  The enforcement appeal regarding the siting 

of a mobile home at Breach Barns Caravan Park introduced a number of issues that 
the Inspector considered were not entirely relevant to the case and which took up 
Inquiry time unnecessarily. He made an award of costs against the Council 
amounting to 2 hours of inquiry attendance and preparation time in favour of the 
appellants.  However, he also ordered the appellants to pay to the Council the costs 
of 2 hours inquiry time, together with the cost of preparing evidence on affordable 
housing; and to pay to the Corporation of London their costs for 2 hours of their 
attendance time. 

 
Conclusions: 
 
7. The Council’s performance for this six-month period was an improvement on last 

year and consistent with the previous year’s exceptional performance and has once 
again exceeded the BVPI and the national average. 

 
8. The decisions are listed in the Members Bulletin from time to time but a full list of 

decisions over this six-month period appears at Appendix 1. 

Page 14



Appendix 1 
Appeal Decisions April to October 2005 
 
Planning Appeals Allowed: 
 

1. EPF/1183/04 – Installation of 12 telecommunications antennae at St 
Winifred’s Church, Manor Road, Chigwell 

2. EPF/1387/03 – Two storey side extension at 1, Lyndhurst Rise, Chigwell 
3. EPF/2398/04 – Erection of 3 cottages at 109, Lindsey Street, Epping 
4. EPF/1319/04 – New vehicular access at 206, Nine Ashes Road, High Ongar 
5. EPF/2041/04 – Two storey rear extension and other alterations at 67, 

Tycehurst Hill, Loughton 
6. TRE/EPF/753/04 – Lopping of overhanging branches at 1, Brancaster Place, 

Church Hill, Loughton 
7. A/EPF/2125/04 – Illuminated sign at 1, Valley Hill, Loughton 
8. EPF/484/04 – Temporary living accommodation for maintenance and security 

of fishing lakes at Moor Hall Fish Farm, Moor Hall Lane, Matching 
9. EPF/2427/04 – Use of agricultural buildings for B8 storage and distribution at 

Oakleigh Nursery, Paynes Lane, Nazeing 
10. EPF/1307/04 – Erection of detached annexe at 43, Fyfield Road, Ongar 

 
Planning Appeals Dismissed 
       

11. EPF/383/04 – Extensions at 20A Rous Road, Buckhurst Hill 
12. EPF/1203/04 – erection of 6 flats and parking at Garage Block, corner of 

Westbury Road and Westbury Lane, Buckhurst Hill 
13. EPF/1540/04 – Two storey side extension at 20 Ormonde Rise, Buckhurst Hill 
14. EPF/2093/04 – Erection of dwelling house at land r/o 16, Forest Edge, 

Buckhurst Hill 
15. EPF/1167/04 – New roof with games room and attic at 44/46, Forest Lane, 

Chigwell 
16. EPF/1260/03 – Use as memorial garden with chapel, etc. on land at Former 

Beaver Site, Manor Road, Chigwell 
17. EPF/1423/04 – Front boundary wall and gates at 175, Lambourne Road, 

Chigwell 
18. EPF/1520/04 – Increase max no. of dwellings to 60 at Grange Farm, High 

Road, Chigwell 
19. EPF/1615/04 – Redevelopment of core area for 180 houses at Grange Farm 

High Road, Chigwell 
20. EPF/1547/04 – Erection of 4 detached dwellings at land adj. The Paddock, 

Grove Lane, Chigwell 
21. EPF/1848/04 – Erection of 4 dwellings at 80, Hainault Road, Chigwell 
22. EPF/1960/04 – New roof for games room and dressing room at 44/46, Forest 

Lane, Chigwell 
23. EPF/2019/04 – Use as licensed betting office at 17 Brook Parade, High Road, 

Chigwell 
24. EPF/417/04 – Erection of two dwellings at 64A, Bower Hill, Epping   
25. EPF/1444/04 – Single storey rear extension at Bell Cottage, Bell Common, 

Epping   
26. EPF/1477/04 – Boundary wall and gates at 12, Lower Bury Lane, Epping   
27. EPF/2361/04 – Use for sale of hot food at 26, Lindsey Street, Epping   
28. EPF/1010/04 – Extension of residential cartilage for dog run and shed at 

Buzzards View, Parvills Farm, Epping Upland 
29. EPF/1435/04 – First floor rear balcony at 38, Hoe Lane, Abridge 

Page 15



30. EPF/605/04 – Two storey side extension and creation of 5 flats at 3, Upper 
Park, Loughton 

31. EPF/1033/03 – Two storey rear extension and other alterations at 67 
Tycehurst Hill, Loughton 

32. EPF/1166/04 – Rear extension and detached garage at 27, Grosvenor Drive, 
Loughton (Objection was made only to the rear extension) 

33. EPF/1761/04 – Rear conservatory at 65, Stonards Hill, Loughton 
34. EPF/2086/04 – Use of first floor as clinic at 251A, High Road, Loughton 
35. EPF/2133/04 – First floor rear extension and loft conversion at 5, 

Summerfield Road, Loughton 
36. TRE/EPF/1648/04 – Felling of a yew tree at 38, Upper Park, Loughton 
37. EPF/950/04 – New church, hall and 26 flats at Trinity Church, Mannock Drive, 

Loughton 
38. EPF/1300/03 – Use of building as 2 dwellings at The Redoubt, Ongar Park, 

North Weald 
39. EPF/1995/04 – Use for keeping horses and erection of stables at 1 

Gainsthorpe Cottages, Gainsthorpe Road, Bobbingworth 
40. EPF/352/04 – Animal shelter at Stoneshot, Farm, Hoe Lane, Nazeing 
41. EPF/864/04 – Erection of 2 stables and hay store at Langridge Barn, Paynes 

Lane, Nazeing 
42. EPF/1699/04 – Detached hay barn and extension of tack room building at 

Five Acre Lodge, Hoe Lane, Nazeing 
43. EPF/1756/04 – New vehicle access at Little Dormers, Middle Street, Nazeing 
44. EPF1694/03 – Use of buildings as B1 offices at The Redoubt, Ongar Park, 

North Weald 
45. EPF/1870/04 – Erection of 21 houses and 1 flat at Blacksmiths Arms PH, 

Woodside, Thornwood 
46. EPF/1246/04 – Use as a single dwelling at Old Mission Hall, Willingale Road, 

Norton Heath 
47. EPF/518/04 – Replacement garage with first floor at St Vincents Farm, 

Epping Road, Broadley Common 
48. EPF/2170/04 – Single story Rear extension at Holne Chase, Hamlet Hill, 

Roydon 
49. EPF/1620/04 – Erection of detached dwelling at 1 Ash Groves, Sheering 
50. EPF/623/04 – Conversion of sewage treatment block to a dwelling at 

Moletrap PH, Tawney Common, Stapleford Tawney 
51. EPF/655/04 – Two storey building for residential care home at Suttons Manor, 

London Road, Stapleford Tawney 
52. EPF/769/04 – Low level lighting and extension of hours of clubhouse at 

Theydon Bois Tennis Club, Sidney Road, Theydon Bois 
53. EPF/1292/04 – Green burial ground with chapel etc at land at Theydon Mount 

End, Theydon Mount 
54. EPF/146/05 – Erection of 3 storey block of 16 flats at 40a, 44 & 46, 

Highbridge Street, Waltham Abbey 
  

Enforcement Appeals Allowed 
 

55. Erection of wall, railings and gates at 140, Manor Road, Chigwell 
56. Laying hardstanding and use for siting a mobile home at Breach Barns 

Caravan Park, Galley Hill 
 
 
Enforcement Appeal Part-Allowed and Part-Dismissed 
 

Page 16



57. Laying an access road (allowed) and laying hardstanding (dismissed) at 
Alderwood Pasture, New Farm Drive, Abridge 

 
Enforcement Appeals Dismissed 
 

58. Stationing of a mobile home at Alderwood Pasture, New Farm Drive, Abridge 
59. Use for processing trees, the siting of four containers and portakabin, 

formation of hardstanding and depositing of earth and waste materials at land 
at Hill Hall, Theydon Mount 

60. Erection of stables and laying base and hardstanding at North Lodge Farm, 
Holyfield, Waltham Abbey 

61. Use for car vehicle washing including siting of store building and container on 
land at Old Orleans P.H., Epping Road, Waltham Abbey 

 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘B’ 

7 DECEMBER 2005 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE

1. EPF/1509/05 2 Western Avenue, Epping Grant 21 
2. EPF/1706/05 30 Station Road, Epping Grant 26 
3. A/EPF/1715/05 273-275 High Street, Epping Grant 29 
4. EPF/1807/05 17 Ivy Chimneys Road, Epping Grant 32 
5. EPF/1857/05 Barn at Creeds Farm, Bury Lane, 

Epping 
Refuse 35 

6. EPF/1812/05 38 Blackacre Road, Theydon 
Bois 

Grant 41 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1509/05 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 2 Western Avenue, Epping 

 
PARISH: Epping 

 
APPLICANT: Mr R M Whetstone 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of adjacent garages and erection of a pair of semi-

detached two bedroom houses. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS:  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 
 

3 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the building 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

4 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be 
erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 
 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1 Classes A and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

6 Each parking space to be a minimum of 2.5m wide by 4.8m deep. 
 
 

7 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the access and parking spaces, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be 

Page 21



completed prior to the first occupation of the development. 
 
 

8 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

9 Prior to commencement of the development details of the pedestrian sight lines 
1.5m x 1.5m to be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Description of Proposal  
 
Consent is being sought for the demolition of three adjacent garages and the erection of a pair of 
semi detached two bedroom houses. The dwellings would be located next to No. 2 Western 
Avenue. A small single storey side extension to No. 2 Western Avenue would be demolished and 
replaced with one parking space with a new boundary line drawn up. The two new dwellings would 
be sited where the garage to No. 2 is currently sited along with a pair of detached garages 
currently under Council ownership. 
 
 
Description of Site 
 
Site consists of a two storey semi detached dwelling and 3 adjacent detached garages with large 
garden area to rear, located on the eastern side of Western Avenue. To the rear are 2 semi 
detached dwellings facing Centre Drive, which would be approximately between 19.5-22m from 
the first floor rear elevations of the proposed dwellings on ground approximately 300mm lower. 
The road is typified by two storey semi detached dwellings, some of which are maisonettes and 
some, which have off street parking although many do not. 
 
 
Relevant History 
 
None 
 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Structure Plan Policies:- 
Structure Plan BE1 – Urban Intensification 
T8 – Car Parking 
 
Local Plan Policies 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on existing surrounding properties 
DBE8 – Private amenity space 
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
T14 – Car Parking 
T17 – Highway Safety 
 

Page 22



 
Issues and Considerations 
 
The main issues here relate to the impact of the new development on the locality, on the amenities 
of the nearby residents and highways issues. 
 
1. Impact on the character and appearance of the locality. 
 
The proposed dwellings are of a similar size, height and style of the existing dwellings in the 
locality. They would follow the same building line as the properties along this side of Western 
Avenue. They would be set in approximately 900mm off the side boundaries and would not appear 
cramped on the site. When viewed from within the street scene these dwellings would appear in 
keeping with the surrounding area. Complies with DBE1 and DBE2 of the adopted Local Plan. 
 
 
2. The impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties. 
 
The neighbours to the rear of the site, namely at Nos. 5 and 7 Centre Drive have objected to the 
scheme arguing that the new dwellings would result in an unacceptable level of visual impact, loss 
of daylight and sunlight, loss of privacy and overlooking. In terms of visual impact the separation 
between the main bulk of the dwellings and the properties along Centre Drive is between 19.5m 
and 22m. The Local plan does not specify minimum standards however given No.2 Western 
Avenue is only 20.5m from the rear of No. 7 Centre Drive the separation here does not appear to 
be so unreasonable to warrant a refusal. In terms of loss of daylight/sunlight, this may well occur 
during mid to late afternoon given the orientation of the dwellings, however due to the degree of 
separation between the dwellings, again it is not considered to be so material to justify a refusal. In 
terms of overlooking and loss of privacy, no. 7 Centre Drive benefits from dense bush and tree 
screen on their rear boundary and would combined with distance of 22m from the nearest new 
dwelling not be overlooked to an unacceptable level. The view into No. 5 Centre Drive however is 
more open although it is still considered that due the distance between the dwellings is just about 
acceptable the level of overlooking here given its urban location is justifiable. Complies with DBE2 
and DBE8 of the adopted Local Plan. 
 
2. Private Amenity Space 
 
Amenity space for the new dwellings would be 71sqm and 79sqm respectively. Each dwelling 
would have 3 habitable rooms (kitchens not included as less than 13sqm). Therefore complies with 
Council policy of attributing 20sqm per habitable room for garden space. 
 
3. Parking Provision 
 
A number of objections have been received regarding potential parking problems that may result 
from this proposal. However, one parking space is provided per unit and in the light of current 
government advice contained in both PPG3 (Housing) and PPG 13 (transport) it would appear that 
this is acceptable given its location close to public transport facilities, in particular Epping 
underground station some 8-10 minutes walk away. Despite the vicinity around the site being 
congested at peak times (school starting and finishing times) with on street parking, highways 
have no objections to the number of spaces provided subject to relevant conditions. The site lies 
within walking distance of Epping town centre. 
 
Further concerns have been raised regarding the loss of the two garages, which are council 
owned and rented by the occupiers of Nos. 5 and 13 Western Avenue. Neither currently has any 
off street parking and would be forced to park on the street if these garages are removed. Many 
other properties do not have off street parking. However to refuse the scheme on this alone would 

Page 23



be difficult to defend on appeal in light of current government guidance that is attempting to reduce 
the need for the use of the motor car especially in urban areas close to public transport links. 
Housing services have raised no comments regarding the application.  
 
Conclusion 
 
Approval is recommended. 
 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
EPPING TOWN COUNCIL – No objection . However Committee were interested that the district 
council review its responsibilities to provide affordable housing in relation to this application in view 
of the fact that the district own an important part of the subject land and the district council would 
obviously be mindful of their obligations to hold land for the benefit of the people within the district 
who need affordable housing. 
NOS. 5 AND 7 CENTRE DRIVE object on the grounds of visual impact, loss of daylight/sunlight, 
and loss of privacy, overlooking, garden size and parking. 
NOS. 3,5, 6,7, 9,10, 13,13A, 13B, 21 AND 23 WESTERN AVENUE object on the grounds of 
parking and congestion due to most houses not having off street parking, concern regarding 
emergency vehicle access and impact of houses on street. 
NOS. 5 AND 13 WESTERN AVENUE also object to loss of council garages they rent. 
NO. 29 ST. JOHNS GARDENS, CLACTON – objects on the grounds of parking, loss of privacy 
and light to No. 5 Centre Drive and overlooking. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

Page 25



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1706/05 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 30 Station Road, Epping 

 
PARISH: Epping 

 
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs I Savill 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey side and rear, including first floor front extensions. 

(Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 
 

3 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the building 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Revised scheme for 2 storey side and rear extensions and first floor front extension. 
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Detached house in ribbon of mixed development with well screened secluded rear garden and 
front forecourt parking served by in-and-out driveway. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
 
Replacement for 2 storey side/rear/and first floor front extensions July 2005 (EPF/776/05). This 
was refused planning permission for two reasons, which were the harmful effect on the street 
scene of the excessive scale and bulk of the extensions; front extension harmful on the amenities 
of no.32 and overbearing impact of the rear extension on both nos. 28 and 32. 
 
 

Page 26



 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 (Amenity), DBE10 (Design and Appearance). 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues relate to the impact of the extensions on the amenities of the houses on either 
side, and the design and appearance of the proposals on the street scene. 
 
The previous scheme envisaged a front first floor extension carried up in a full gable to create a 
bedroom, which would have had an adverse impact on the amenities of No. 28 on the north side 
and would have appeared unduly dominant in the street scene. The 2 storey side extension 
projected beyond the existing front wall of the house (which would have had a similar impact on 
No. 32 to the south) and the rear kitchen extension was very close to the side boundary, also 
having a detrimental affect on No. 32.  
 
Following negotiations with the officers the amended scheme now submitted corrects these 
defects substituting the front gable with a catslide roof with a small dormer set back 2m from the 
existing front wall (now serving a bathroom in lieu of a bedroom) whilst the side extension is set 
back 2.3m so that its face is 3.6m behind the garage front wall. The width of the rear extension has 
also been reduced so that a 1m gap to the side boundary with No. 32 is maintained. 
 
These amendments overcome both the amenity and street scene objections to the original 
proposal and this revised scheme complies with the criteria of policies DBE9 and 10 and approval 
is now recommended. 
 
The Town Council raised no objection to the original proposal in May 2005 and their current 
comments are more appropriate to the earlier plans than to this revised scheme. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
TOWN COUNCIL - out of character and over-dominant; detracts from and detrimental to street 
scene; contrary to policies DBE9 and 10; revisions do not reduce bulk nor significantly reduce loss 
of amenity of neighbouring properties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

Page 28



Report Item No: 3  
 
APPLICATION No: A/EPF/1715/05 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 273 - 275 High Street, Epping 

 
PARISH: Epping 

 
APPLICANT: Abbey National Group 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of Internally illuminated display unit to front. 

 
RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The maximum luminance of the sign(s) granted consent by this Notice shall not 
exceed 1600 candelas per square metre. 
 
 

 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Internally illuminated display box inside front window of premises above the ATM cash machine. 
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Two storey block of shops build 1960's with later roof dormers. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
 
Illuminated fascia lettering EPF/1645/05 - APPROVED 9 November 2005. 
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE13, HC6, T17 - Shopfronts and Advertisements - Guidelines 1992 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The only issues relevant, as with all advertisement applications, relate to visual amenity and 
highway safety. 
 
1. Amenity 
 
This display has been installed for some weeks and comprises a freestanding A2 poster-size 
internally illuminated box within a red painted metal frame 0.71m x 0.68m and placed on top of the 
ATM equipment wholly inside the building. The plate glass window where the ATM is situated is 

Page 29



set back behind a brick nib and the front fact of the display box is set back a further 90mm from 
the inside of the window and located just above eye level.  
 
Essentially the display amounts to little more than an interior window poster illuminated by normal 
internal shop window spotlights and if anything the lighting as installed is more localised and 
discrete. There is thus no detriment to the visual amenities of the street scene within the 
Conservation Area and there is no conflict with Local Plan policies or the adopted guidelines. 
 
2. Highway Considerations 
 
There are no road safety concerns apart from controlling the maximum permissible luminance of 
the sign. 
 
Accordingly retrospective consent is recommended. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
TOWN COUNCIL  - Object; represents a large internally illuminated sign; deplore retrospective 
nature of application. 
128 WOODLAND GROVE  - Object; detrimental to character of town within Conservation Area; set 
precedent that would see an end to High Street as we know it; not alone in hoping that 
conservation of our town is looked after. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 

Page 31



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1807/05 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 17 Ivy Chimneys Road, Epping 

 
PARISH: Epping 

 
APPLICANT: Mr R Newman 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey side extension to form self-contained 'granny flat' 

with both separate external access and internal access 
through house. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 
 

3 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the building 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

4 The proposed extension shall only be used as ancillary accommodation for the 
existing dwellinghouse and shall not be occupied as a unit separately from the 
dwelling known as 17 Ivy Chimneys Road, Epping. 
 
 

 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Two storey side extension for self-contained `granny-annexe'. 
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Substantial detached house built 2004 set well back and high off the road with open paved 
forecourt parking. Adjacent to public footpath on west side, with open land to the north. 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



Relevant History: 
 
Refusal for front and rear dormers February 2001. 
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 and T17 – impact and parking policies. 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
1. Amenity 
 
There is a 4.1m gap between the present house and the public footpath on the west side and the 
extension will be 1.9m from the plot boundary, creating a gap of some 3m between the house and 
`The Ivy', which is sited further forward and at a higher level. There will thus be no adverse effect 
on the adjoining house. 
 
2. Design/street scene 
 
The western section of the existing house is set back behind the main house wall and being 11/2 
storeys high the ridge height is 2m lower than the main roof. The proposed extension follow this 
profile with the first floor bedroom contained within the roofspace and lighted by small dormers 
front and rear. The extension will therefore appear as an acceptable subsidiary element in the 
street scene and the design reflects the style and elevational features of the main dwelling. 
 
3. Highway matters 
 
The existing integral garage remains and there is additional parking available in the open paved 
forecourt. The line of the existing footpath on the west side of the house is clearly defined and 
fenced off and will be unaffected. 
 
This is a satisfactory proposal and approval is recommended. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
TOWN COUNCIL - Insufficient information regarding public footpath felt to be under threat; 
overdevelopment of the site. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



Page 34



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1857/05 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Barn at Creeds Farm, Bury Lane, Epping 

 
PARISH: Epping 

 
APPLICANT: Mr H Pegrum 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use to B1 (business) use with associated parking 

and landscaping. (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: REFUSE 
 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL: 
 

1 The building the subject of the application is considered out of keeping with its 
surroundings by way of form bulk and general design, and additionally the proposed 
use will result in significant on site parking which will be harmful to the openness and 
to the character and amenity of the Green Belt.  The proposal is therefore 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and contrary to Policy C2 of the Essex 
and Southend on Sea Replacement Structure Plan and policies GB2 and GB8 of the 
adopted Local Plan.  
 
 

2 The parking of vehicles at the site in connection with the proposed use will have an 
adverse impact on the character and visual amenity of the adjacent Conservation 
Area and the setting of the adjacent listed building contrary to policy HC2 of the 
Essex and Southend on Sea Replacement Structure Plan and policies HC6 and 
HC12 of the adopted Local Plan.   
 
 

3 The movement of vehicles within the site and loading and unloading in connection 
with the proposed use and likely to create unacceptable levels of disturbance to the 
nearest residential properties contrary to policy RP5 of the adopted Local Plan. 

 
 
 
Description of Proposal:  
  
Change of use of existing agricultural building to B1 business use, with associated parking and 
landscaping.  The application is speculative, with no end user proposed.  A B1 use is defined as a 
use as an office or for research and development or any industrial process, which can be carried 
out in a residential area without detriment to the amenity of that area by reason of noise, vibration, 
smell, smoke, dust, fumes, ash, soot or grit.  The proposal includes the provision of a parking area 
to the rear of the building and the planting of hedges to the rear and side boundaries. 
 
 
Description of Site:  
 
The site is located on the western side of Bury Lane immediately adjacent to recently converted 
cottages at Creeds Farm.  Creeds Farm House, to the south is a Grade II listed building.  There is 

Page 35



open agricultural land to the north and east and there are residential properties on the opposite 
side of the road in Highfield Green.  The building the subject of the application is a large utilitarian 
farm building of blockwork and corrugated metal. 
   
 
Relevant History: 
  
An application for change of use to B8 storage and B1 business use was refused in 1997 and 
dismissed on appeal. 
An application submitted earlier this year for change of use to B1 and B8 was withdrawn. 
  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Structure plan policies: 
CS12  protecting the natural and built environment. 
CS3 Encouraging Economic Success. 
CS4 sustainable New Development. 
C2 development within the Green Belt. 
HC2  Conservation Areas. 
BIW1  Employment Land Provision 
BIW5 Business Location. 
T12 vehicle parking. 
 
Local Plan Policies: 
GB2  Green Belt. 
GB8 Change of use of buildings. 
HC6 development affecting conservation areas 
HC12 development affecting the setting of a listed building. 
RP5 development likely to cause a nuisance. 
LL2, LL3 and LL11 relating to landscaping. 
T14 and T17 relating to parking and highway issues. 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues in determining this application are: impact on the Green Belt, impact on the 
conservation area and setting of the listed building, highway and traffic implications, impact on 
residential amenity of surrounding residents and sustainability issues. 
Some of these issues were considered at the time of the appeal into the refusal of consent for B1 
and B8 uses back in 1998.  At that time the appeal inspector concluded that commercial vehicles 
parking on the site would be visually intrusive and have a materially greater impact than the 
present use on the openness of the Green Belt.  He concluded therefore that the development was 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and by definition harmful.  Additionally the inspector 
concluded that the use would result in increased noise and disturbance to local residents and the 
visual impact of the parking would be detrimental to the appearance of the Bell Common 
Conservation Area and the setting of the listed building at Creeds Farm.  The question therefore is 
whether the removal of the B8 element of the proposal and the addition of hedging, taken together 
with the changes that have taken place at Creeds Farm, mean that these reasons for refusal are 
no longer valid. 
 
1. Green Belt   
 
The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  The reuse of existing buildings within the Green 
Belt can be appropriate.  Policy GB8 of the adopted Local Plan allows for the re use of permanent 

Page 36



and substantial buildings, in keeping with their surroundings by way of form, bulk and general 
design for, among other things business use where this would not involve open storage or a 
significant amount of vehicle parking, or traffic generation that would be detrimental to the 
character or amenities of the countryside. 
 
The building the subject of the application is clearly of permanent and substantial construction.  It 
is a typical agricultural building, which in this setting close to residential properties and adjacent to 
open agricultural land is out of keeping with its surroundings. The proposed use will result 
inevitably in some on site parking of cars and commercial vehicles, some of which may be large 
and there is no way of controlling the type of vehicles visiting the site.  Hedging may, if well 
maintained and allowed to grow, reduce the visual impact of the parking to some extent but clearly 
there will still be an impact on openness.  There is no intention for there to be any open storage in 
connection with the use and this can be controlled by condition.  As the building is not in keeping 
with its surroundings and openness will be adversely affected it is considered that the 
development is inappropriate in the Green Belt. 
 
2. Conservation Area and Setting of the Listed building.  
  
The site itself is not within the Conservation Area but it abuts the northern boundary.  The Creeds 
Farm House is listed and the recently converted farm buildings adjacent to the site are curtilage 
listed.  The application building, while unattractive is obviously a current feature and the question 
is whether the new use will have an adverse impact on the character of the conservation area or 
the setting of the listed building.  No alterations to the building are proposed at this time and a 
condition can be applied to prevent alterations without a further application.  It is not considered 
that the alternative use would in itself have an adverse impact on the character of the area, but the 
fact remains that additional parking in connection with the use will have a visual impact, which as 
the inspector at the previous appeal concluded would have an adverse impact on the 
Conservation Area and the setting of the listed building.   Since the last appeal the buildings 
nearest to the application site have been converted to residential use and garaging has been 
erected, these alterations were seen as maintaining the setting of the listed building, and they 
removed a restaurant and farm shop use. The introduction of additional parking on the application 
site, even with landscaping provision, is still considered likely to have an adverse impact on the 
visual amenity of the area. 
 
3. Highway and Traffic Implications. 
 
Essex County Council’s Highways have considered the proposal and have concluded that subject 
to improvements to the access (in terms of the access radii and surfacing) the scheme does not 
pose a threat to highway safety.  Adequate space is provided for car parking within the site.   
Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposal is likely to result in an increase in traffic this is not in 
itself a reason for refusal, and was not a factor in the dismissal of the last appeal. 
 
4. Residential Amenity. 
   
The site lies adjacent to residential properties and the access is directly opposite houses in 
Highfield Green, care must therefore be taken that the proposed use will not cause harm to 
residential amenity.  The proposed use is B1, which, by definition, is a use that is suitable within a 
residential area.  Any use that causes noise, dust, fumes, etc is not a B1 use.  Therefore the main 
concern therefore relates to possible noise and disturbance from traffic visiting the site.  It is 
considered that commercial traffic visiting the site is likely to cause unacceptable levels of noise 
and disturbance to the nearest residential properties and it is not considered that an hours of use 
condition would overcome this concern as this is not the type of area, adjacent to open 
countryside, in which one could expect such noise during the day.  It is accepted that if used 
intensively for agricultural storage the existing use could cause significant disturbance, including at 

Page 37



antisocial hours but, this is not currently the situation and it is considered that a B1 use is likely to 
result in far more general disturbance on a daily basis. 
 
5. Sustainability.  
 
 Whilst the policies of the Structure Plan seek to site new businesses within the urban areas for 
sustainability reasons, this site is not exactly isolated.  It lies on the urban fringe of Epping, close to 
the main road network and within walking distance of bus stops and Epping Station.  Reuse for 
business purposes is therefore considered to be a relatively sustainable option in accordance with 
the core strategy of the Structure plan. 
 
6. Comments on neighbour objections. 
 
There is obviously considerable concern from neighbours regarding this application; most of their 
concerns have been addressed above, however various other matters have been raised. 
1.  The fact that there may be a redevelopment of St Johns School, which will increase traffic in 
the Lane.  This is a possibility, but it is not considered that this would make the current proposal 
unacceptable. Business use of the premises is unlikely to result in very large numbers of traffic 
movements and if the lane is appropriate for the level of use that the school may bring then it is 
similarly appropriate for the increase from the current proposal. 
2. Property Prices.  Potential impact on property values is not a significant planning issue that 
could justify refusal. 
3. B1 use too vague, could be used for storage by the back door.  The building is too large to 
subsequently be converted to B8 use without the need for planning consent.  Even if there were a 
named user proposed for the site with set traffic generation levels if permission were granted the 
use could then change to any B1 use without the need for consent such details may therefore be 
misleading.  B1 use is specifically defined.  If a use creates noise, dust, fumes, etc then it is not a 
B1 use and cannot occupy the premises. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The appeal against the previous refusal of consent for change of use of the premises to B1 and B8 
back in 1998 was dismissed mainly on the basis that additional parking, particularly of commercial 
vehicles would be visually intrusive and have a materially greater impact than the present use on 
the Green Belt and on the conservation area and the setting of the listed building.  In considering 
the current application we have to take into account that the B8 (storage and distribution element 
of the proposal) has been removed and that as such there are unlikely to be HGVs parked at the 
site.  Additionally the current scheme does include the planting of hedging along the side and rear 
boundaries to reduce the visual impact of any parking in connection with the use.  However on 
balance given the sensitive nature of this Green Belt site, adjacent to the Conservation Area and 
the Listed Farmhouse it is considered that the parking that would inevitably result from the change 
of use would be detrimental to openness and to the character of the area. 
 
Additionally, there are now residential properties actually abutting the building. The occupants of 
Number 5 Creeds Farm Yard in particular, which is already overshadowed by the building, would 
be likely to suffer from noise and disturbance from vehicles accessing the site and loading and 
unloading adjacent to the front of their property. 
 
The application is therefore recommended for refusal. 
 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
TOWN COUNCIL – Committee objected to this application on the grounds that more detailed 

Page 38



information was needed relating to the change of use to B1 (business use only.  Although 
previously Committee had no objection to the proposal for change of use, they did request the 
District Council to closely consider the adjacent residential premises and to impose conditions on 
the use of the barn which would avoid disturbance to the residential properties.  Committee also 
requested the District Council take into account proposals for St Johns School development 
because if the school development were approved use of the barn for storage with large vehicle 
movements could cause traffic hazard which would impact on the school use. 
EPPING SOCIETY - Object .  Inappropriate in the Green Belt and a conservation area. Could lead 
to increased and more regular traffic use which would cause an unacceptable traffic hazard in 
Bury Lane. 
2 CREEDS FARM YARD and  
3 CREEDS FARM YARD - Close to our property and would affect us and the other residents of 
Creeds Farm Barn.  Concerned about loss of enjoyment and decrease in value.  Green belt and 
conservation area.  Out of character with rural location and unsuitable location so close to 
residential area. Increase in traffic movements will make exist from Creeds farm Yard even more 
difficult.  Increased noise, pollution and impact on the environment. 
12 HIGHFIELD GREEN - Object.  The road cannot cope with yet more traffic.  The barn is not 
situated in an area where expansion can be considered because bury Lane is not a 4 lane 
highway and cannot cope with all this traffic without disrupting our lives and safety completely. 
23 HIGHFIELD GREEN – Business use is a very broad term and the landscaping seems to be just 
hedging. My objections therefore remain the same.  Highway danger.  Already very tricky driving 
out of the Highfield Green Estate.  Increasing numbers of commercial and private vehicles are 
using the lane .  If St Johns School is built then the lane will be even more dangerous.  Noise and 
pollution. Unsuitable area for such a business.  The barn is directly opposite my small back 
garden. 
39 HIGHFIELD GREEN – Very much against the proposal. Bury Lane is already bad enough with 
the way some cars come speeding along, more traffic would be disastrous. 
26 HIGHFIELD GREEN – Strongly opposed.  More traffic will result inappropriate to this narrow 
lane. Already disturbed by large lorries several times a year filling and then emptying the barn with 
silage, mud is spread all over bury Lane and when turning the large lorries almost hit the back 
walls of our gardens.  A new school is built with access down Bury Lane.  There is more traffic now 
than when the last application was turned down by the Minister.  There should be a traffic count.  
This will not be an office the only possible use for the building is storage/ distribution.  Noise 
nuisance and danger will result from the development. 
APPLE TREE COTTAGE, BURY LANE – Object. Within Conservation Area and Metropolitan 
Green Belt.  Close to residential properties including a listed building.  Concerned about increases 
in noise and pollution, heavy traffic possibly during night hours.  Parking and loading, unloading of 
goods vehicles of whatever size will be harmful to rural character and intrusive in the Green Belt.  
No indication of what would be held on the site, there could be significant refuse created.  If the 
use is unknown how can the planning officer judge whether it will be detrimental to amenity by 
noise, vibration, small etc.  Also a B1 use can change to a B8 use without the need for planning 
permission (if the size is no more than 235 sqm. Given the nature of the building, no windows etc 
the only feasible use under B1 would be storage related to light industry.  If approved it will be 
difficult to control the use and to enforce conditions.  More traffic in the lane would add a further 
safety hazard if St Johns School redevelopment is implements.  The application is too vague and 
open-ended and should be refused. 
 
 
 

Page 39



Page 40



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1812/05 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 38 Blackacre Road, Theydon Bois 

 
PARISH: Theydon Bois 

 
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Russell 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: First floor extension to convert bungalow to house. (Revised 

application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 
 

3 Prior to commencement of works a scaled drawing showing a reduction of 0.5 metre 
in roofline terms as specified in architects letter dated 14 November 2005, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

 
Description of Proposal: 
 
First floor extension to convert bungalow to a house. (Revised application). 
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site comprises a 2 bedroom detached bungalow and lies within the built-up area of 
Theydon Bois. It is predominantly a residential area. It is located on the north side of Blackacre 
Road. It has a brick finish but is painted white and has a cover of concrete tiles on its roof. A large, 
unattractive dormer has been built at the rear roof space. The property has a large garden and full 
width garden shed. The land slopes down from the south direction and lies below the level of the 
road. The difference of ground level mounts well over a metre. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPO/950/1973 - First floor extension - Approved 18 December 1973.  
EPF/1405/05 - First floor extension and loft conversion with rear dormer window converting 
bungalow to a house. The proposal was refused 12 September 2005 – Size and design of dormer 
would be visually intrusive. 
 

Page 41



 
Policies Applied: 
 
Policy DBE9 - Impact of extension or new development in the form of visual impact overlooking or 
loss of daylight/sunlight. 
Policy DBE10 - Concerns the design and form of residential extensions and seeks to ensure that 
extensions respect the character and appearance of the original building and the surrounding 
area. 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main planning issues in this application are the impact on the character and appearance of 
the existing building within the visual context of the street scene and any detrimental effects on the 
adjoining properties. 
 
1. Detrimental effects on the adjoining properties 
 
The separation between the dwelling and its boundaries of 1m towards No. 36A and 1.3m towards 
No. 40, together with the space on the neighbour’s side of the boundaries ensures that the 
proposed increase in height will not be overbearing to its neighbours. The applicant has agreed to 
reduce the ridge height by 0.5m.  There are no side windows planned. 
 
2. Street scene 
 
Blackacre Road has a great variety of house forms and designs. There is no dominance of any 
particular design. Many dwelling’s have had roof extensions or accommodation provided within the 
roof space. The application site is a bungalow and has a huge dormer at its rear, built before the 
adoption of the Local Plan policies. 
 
The submitted drawing shows that the ridge height of this building would be increased from 5.6m 
to nearly 8m. No. 36A is a detached bungalow and No. 40 is a large detached house. No. 36A and 
38 has more or less equal roof heights whereas No. 40 has much higher roofline than the planned 
height of the application site.  The design of the development has been kept in keeping with the 
existing features of the dwelling. A round decorative window forms part of the front gable. The 
existing unsympathetic large dormer at the rear of this property would be removed as part of this 
development. It is considered that the proposed development will not be an intrusive development 
in the context of many surrounding properties. The visual aspect of the proposal on the character 
and appearance of the existing house to its surrounding area would not be harmful and therefore 
conform to policy DBE10 of the adopted Local Plan. 
 
3. Highway Considerations 
 
There are at least two parking spaces on its forecourt and highway officers have no objection to 
this proposal as it meets the parking requirements easily. Highway safety will not be compromised. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The comments of the Parish Council have been carefully considered but on balance it has been 
found that there is little overbearing impact on the adjoining neighbours. Furthermore, the issue of 
loss of bungalows is not supported by the Local Plan policies. It has been found that the proposal 
meets the requirements of the Local Plan policies. 
 

Page 42



The other representations have been examined and a reduction in ridge height has been secured. 
There are no other factors which outweigh the above considerations. The proposal is therefore 
acceptable and recommended for approval. 
 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
PARISH COUNCIL  - The Council objects to this proposal as it feels that the overall bulk is 
detrimental to the street scene and which would have overbearing impact on the neighbouring 
properties. It also objects on the grounds of loss of a bungalow in this location. 
36A BLACKACRE ROAD  - An objection is raised on the grounds of higher roofline and a 
suggestion is made to get it lowered.  
 
 
 

Page 43



 

Page 44


